# **Board Meeting Minutes**

American Go Association

Meeting Date and Time: June 28 2020, 8:00 pm EDT

# Table of Contents

Executive Summary	2
Attendees	2
Motions passed by email on July 7, 2020	2
Minutes	3
Appendix	8
Conflict of Interest Policy of the American Go Association	8
Article 1: Purpose	8
Article II: Definitions	9
Article III: Interests Concerned	10
Article IV: Procedures	11
Article V: Records of Proceedings	12
Article VI: Compensation	13
Article VII: Annual Statement for Directors	13
Article VIII: Periodic Reviews	14
Article IX: Use of Outside Experts or Advisors	14
Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement of the American Go Association	15

# **Executive Summary**

The AGA board of directors met on June 28th for an ad hoc meeting. The board authorized a Committee for Diversity and Inclusion to create and implement programs to improve representation and equity in the AGA. The board also decided to explore online ratings, discussed changes to membership categories, and reviewed privacy and conflict of interest policy adoption. The meeting was attended by several observers who gave feedback on membership and priority discussions.

# Attendees

#### Board

Lisa Scott (Chair, Central Region) Chris Kirschner (Western Region) Paul Celmer (At-Large)

#### **Officers and Presenters**

Andy Okun (President) Samantha Fede (Secretary)

#### Absent

Devin Fraze (Central Region) Gurujeet Khalsa (Eastern Region) Dan Ritter (Eastern Region) Chris Saenz (Western Region)

#### Guests who have asked to attend

James Hanks (TX) Bill Gundberg (AZ) Vivie Truong (AZ) Ricky Harper (AZ) Ted Terpstra (CA) Justin Teng (MD) Stephen Hu (CA) Steve Colburn (NY) Darrell Ashworth (WV) Stephanie Yin (NY) Ashish Varma (MN/DC)

# Motions passed by email on July 7, 2020

- 1. The board moves to instruct the President to investigate the feasibility and timeline for implementing online ratings, and to report back at the August 8 meeting.
- 2. The board moves that the President should put together a privacy statement for the Membership Manager that, upon board approval, all individuals with access to the Membership Manager must read and sign a statement acknowledging that they have read it.
- 3. The board moves that the President should instruct the VP of Communications to draft a Privacy Policy for the AGA website.
- 4. The board moves to instruct the President to form a Committee on Diversity and Inclusion. The President and the Committee shall have the power to take reasonable steps to implement diversity initiatives, and should seek board approval for programs with significant expenses.
- 5. The board moves to adopt the conflict of interest policy as submitted.

# Minutes

- 1. Call Meeting to Order at 8pm EDT [Quorum is not currently present]
- 2. President's Report
  - a. Annual Report (circulated before meeting)
    - This should be distributed to the chapters 30-50 days before the General Assembly meeting, when notice of the General Assembly meeting is given (per the by-laws, Article II, Section 4: <u>https://www.usgo.org/sites/default/files/pdf/By-laws%20Revision%202018</u>.pdf).
    - ii. June 28 is 42 days before August 9 (probable date of the General Assembly meeting).
    - iii. President's report is not quite ready, will be available before August meeting.
  - b. Update on online events for early August
    - i. 2020 e-Go Congress
    - ii. Day time and evening events, drop in beginner teaching. Otherwise single stream. Not a Congress, small taster for congress. Details will be announced.
    - iii. General assembly planned for Aug 9th
  - c. Proposed reworking on Membership Categories
    - i. The board instructed the president to propose a few options for reworking of membership categories and fee structures.
    - Summary of proposed options:: <u>https://docs.google.com/document/d/19Ne0L\_mv8zNLOhlgqf23P3AcgEB</u> xsy3CuED8LaESmaE/edit?usp=sharing [sent to board prior to meeting]
      - Lisa reminds all that this issue has been brought up at several general assembly meetings, and needs to be addressed at some point. Supports hardship discount and thinks single tournament rates should be removed. In increasing rates, we may also need to discuss what the benefits of membership actually is. Reserves should be spent on pilot programs etc rather than regular operating fees.
      - 2. Paul likes the idea of simplifying promotional memberships, free trial period etc. But now is not the time to discuss it. We should discuss it when we want to implement it. [Lisa responds: There are significant programming requirements and we need to think again.]
      - 3. Chris reflects that single tournament rates were designed for foriegn visitors who would not benefit from membership.
      - 4. Andy opens it up to observer discussion

- a. Stephen Hu: I agree you should increase rates right now, and the EJ broadcasting/ publishing is a significant benefit of membership.
- iii. Pandemic may change perspectives on this issue, which was requested last year.
  - 1. Chris K supports adding a membership extension approximately equal in time to the length of pandemic. Proposed "pandemic free period"
  - 2. Lisa and Paul support in principle, details pending.
- 3. Ongoing Business
  - a. Ratings
    - i. Status of ratings for submitted tournaments
      - 1. Andy Okun spoke to Andrew Jackson about this two days ago, he is onboarding a new volunteer [Robert Qi] to take over ratings.
  - b. Online Ratings
    - i. In light of the pandemic, should we revisit the idea of issuing some form of online ratings?
      - 1. Lisa: This was deferred due to AlphaGo.
      - 2. Chris K: If it can be done, and it is separate from our regular rating system, I think it is necessary.
      - 3. Paul: I like the idea as long as it's separate. Is it possible to require games to be submitted for AI review to flag suspicious games? Or have a repository to hold them for potential review?
      - 4. Lisa: Or maybe spot checking suspicious play? [Action on this item pending quorum]
  - c. Privacy Policy [Presented by Lisa Scott]
    - *i.* Background: This was discussed in 2012-2013 and 2015, but not since.
    - ii. **Membership Manager:** We need an official policy for using information from the membership manager, so different people aren't using different judgement in every situation
      - 1. Chris K: We don't distribute data from the Membership Manager
      - 2. Lisa: We should write that down.
- Action Item [Andy]: Put together a privacy statement for the Membership Manager that individuals can sign as having read
  - iii. Overall Privacy Policy: It would be a very good idea for us to get something broad in place. Eg for pictures and information on website What I have gathered from past conversations is available here [information sent to board prior to meeting]:

https://drive.google.com/open?id=17iNMcHMhsXelrpz6jH7pRYZ94LRRG p8P

Action Item: Ask Chris Garlock to share or write privacy policy for website.

- Ideas for playing go during the pandemic: <u>https://docs.google.com/document/d/1TfNomWmisp2kyaPMobUHbDWL87SF32</u> <u>ShApNoKfMmy38/edit?usp=sharing</u> [Opened to audience]
  - i. Ted Terpstra [guest]: We aren't able to add our online tournaments that we are playing to the AGA calendar. [Group promised to look into this, but outside of the scope of board meeting].
  - ii. Samantha: Demo boards with one person placing for both players.
  - Chris K: At some point we should suggest opening criteria. Maybe we can discuss at the next board meeting. [Lisa: At some point, but August seems too soon.]
    - [Cross-talk about pandemic in different areas]
  - iv. Lisa: Please add ideas you may have to the document
- 2. Discussion of Long-Term Goals and Priorities
  - a. Diversity Discussion
    - i. Creation of Diversity and Inclusion Committee
      - 1. This committee could act somewhat autonomously, except for items with major financial components.
      - Paul supports [Chris, Lisa plan to serve on the committee] [Cannot establish at this time as quorum not present; may be established via email]
    - ii. Steps/Actions to Support Diversity
      - 1. Outreach to underrepresented communities (adults as well)
      - 2. Outreach to schools and libraries in underrepresented communities
      - Brainstorm of ideas to promote diversity: <u>https://docs.google.com/document/d/1xWlv76dI-xlRfe7D2ZO6Vpni</u> <u>xZqemFom7YVwPuyJ0wk/edit?usp=sharing</u>
      - 4. Creating a pipeline to encourage more players from underrepresented communities to play and stay with the game
        - a. Proposal to create a pipeline to bring in more players from underrepresented groups: <u>https://drive.google.com/file/d/1yCvNQBTgbMDstljUAgQRI</u> <u>K0rOAVY4CAw/view?usp=sharing</u>
        - b. Paul generally supports the idea
        - c. Vivie provides the following statement: "Regarding underrepresented minorities, I work currently in the San Carlos Apache reservation, and have been toying with the idea of starting a Go Club here. However, in person resources may be difficult because it's 2 hours away from Phoenix." [Samantha expresses general support]
      - 5. Paul suggests reaching out to the Chess community for ideas.
      - 6. Discussion of previous handling of an event in AZ, prior to Code of Conduct

- a. Andy Okun discusses whether chapter events should be used to implement sanctions on club activity.
- b. Chris K: Handling of events should be handled through the Code of Conduct
- c. Paul: Do we have the capacity to ban offenders from AGA activities? [Yes]
- d. Vivie: Can it be done retroactively or has to be repeated?
- e. Chris K: This should be presented to the committee formally so that a formal decision can be made.
- f. Ted Terpstra: Would TDs be notified? [It would be in the membership manager]
- g. Chris K: This would only be the most extreme of cases.
- h. Lisa: We've discussed this in abstract but maybe we need to codify our processes more.
- i. Paul: We should prioritize responding to the immediate incident.
- j. Lisa: The person in question is not looking for immediate action, the offender is not showing up to events. [Lisa cuts off conversation for the purpose of keeping details of incident private].
- b. Discussion of what concrete steps we can take to support the various ways we all understand the mission of the AGA
  - i. Bill Gunderberg suggest increasing members [Lisa suggests need for more volunteers and ideas to work on it]
    - 1. Chris K: Losing members at the same rate as getting new ones is a common issue.
    - Paul: Do we have a system to contact members who drop after a year? Encouraging rejoining or asking why they dropped? I'd monitor the email but I'd need someone else to build it.
- 4. New Business
  - a. Conflict of Interest Policy [cannot be voted on because of lack of quorum]
    - i. Proposed policy available here: [distributed to board prior to meeting] <u>https://docs.google.com/document/d/1atfBDJPAPInztj\_bneYZDBHbs5ZxE</u> <u>xdZ2LpMpltLDRs/edit?usp=sharing</u>
    - ii. Other helpful information on Conflict of Interest Policy [provided on the agenda]
      - 1. The 2018 revision of the by-laws required the board to institute a conflict of interest policy in accordance with the IRS's recommendations for 501c(3) corporations.
      - 2. The by-laws sketch out the expectations with regard to conflict of interest, but we need to create a full policy.

- The by-laws are available here: <u>https://www.usgo.org/sites/default/files/pdf/By-laws%20Revision%</u> <u>202018.pdf</u>. For Conflict of Interest, see Article III Section 11.
- b. Formalizing the relationship between the AGA and the EJournal
  - i. SF: The AGA needs to have some control and oversight over the messaging that we put out there. Garlock should be part of the discussion, but we need to know where we stand as well, and then we can decide what may or may not need to change.
    [Given a lack of quorum, this issue is tabled for this meeting, to be discussed by email and/or executive session meeting.]

Vivie expressed the following, which Lisa read outloud in the meeting: "In that case, I wanted to mention I had some concerns about the E-Journal's "Reader's response" section. It's hard for me to express why exactly it bothered me, but it seemed to elevate platforms that did not reflect . . . things like what we experienced at our own club"

Lisa: We are aware of this, other people have said it as well, and that is part of what has prompted this agenda item, and we are actively looking for a better way to handle things like this.

- c. Other New Business
- 5. Items for August 2020 meeting
  - a. Nothing new to add, except other items that are already on the agenda
- 6. Adjourn at 9:36pm EDT

# Appendix

## Conflict of Interest Policy of the American Go Association

The Conflict of Interest Policy was adopted on July 7, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the American Go Association following its regularly scheduled meeting.

#### Article 1: Purpose

The American Go Association (the "Organization") is committed to lawful and ethical behavior in all of its activities and requires its employees to conduct themselves in a manner that complies with all applicable laws and regulations and to observe high standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. It is important for the directors, officers, and key employees or volunteers, if any, to be aware that even the appearance of conflict can be troublesome, even when there is in fact no conflict whatsoever. As among the directors, officers, and key employees or volunteers, and the Organization, there exists a fiduciary duty which carries with it a broad and unbending duty of loyalty.

The purpose of this Conflict of Interest Policy (the "Policy") is to protect the Organization's interest when it enters or considers entering into into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of any director, officer or key employee—whether or not compensated—or which might result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This Policy is designed to ensure that the Organization's directors, officers, and key employees or volunteers act in the Organization's best interests and comply with legal requirements. This Policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations.

#### Article II: Definitions

#### A. Financial Interest

A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family:

- 1. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Organization has a transaction or arrangement,
- 2. A compensation arrangement with the Organization or with any entity or individual with which the Organization has a transaction or arrangement, or
- 3. 3. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the organization is negotiating a transaction or arrangement.

A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. A person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the appropriate governing board or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists.

#### B. Compensation

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are not insubstantial.

#### C. Affiliate

Affiliate means any entity controlled by, or in control of the Organization.

#### D. Director

Director means any member of the board of directors (board) of an organization, including the Organization, whether designated as director, trustee, manager, governor, or by any other title.

#### E. Key Employee or Volunteer

Key employee or volunteer means any person who is in a position to exercise substantial influence over the affairs of the Organization.

#### F. Interested Person

"Interested person" means any director, officer or key employee or volunteer with board-delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect interest, as described below.

#### G. Relative

Relative of an individual means

1. His or her spouse or domestic partner

2. His or her ancestors, brothers and sisters (whole or half-blood), children (natural or adopted), grandchildren, great-grandchildren; and (iii) the spouse or domestic partner of his or her brothers, sisters, children, grandchildren and great grandchildren.

#### Article III: Interests Concerned

Conflicts of interest may arise in any transaction or arrangement in which a director, officer or key employee or volunteer has a direct or indirect interest.

#### A. Nature of Conflicting Interest

A conflicting interest includes any transaction, agreement or other arrangement between the Organization or any affiliate, on the one hand, and one or more conflicted parties, on the other hand, as well as any transaction, agreement or other arrangement between the Organization or any affiliate, on the one hand, and any other entity in which one or more conflicted parties is a director or officer, holds a similar position, or has a financial interest and in which the Organization or any affiliate is a participant, on the other hand.

A conflicted party includes any director, officer or key employee of the Organization, any relative of such person, or any entity in which any such person or relative of such person has a thirty-five percent (35%) or greater ownership interest or, in the case of a partnership or professional corporation, a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of five percent (5%). Such an interest might arise, by way of example but not limitation, through:

- 1. Owning stock or other proprietary interests;
- 2. Holding debt or debt securities;
- 3. Holding office, serving on the board, participating in management, or being otherwise employed (or formerly employed);
- 4. Receiving remuneration for services with respect to individual transactions or arrangements;
- 5. Receiving personal gifts, favors, or loans; or
- 6. Obtaining an interest in real estate, securities or other property which the Organization is considering buying or leasing.

#### B. Indirect Interests

A conflicting interest may be indirect. A director, officer or key employee or volunteer will be considered to have an indirect interest in a firm, transaction, or arrangement if any of the following has a conflicting interest:

1. A relative of a director, officer or key employee or volunteer;

- 2. An estate or trust of which the director, officer or key employee, or such director, officer or key employee's relative, is a beneficiary, personal representative, or trustee, or in which the director, officer or key employee is otherwise interested;
- 3. A company of which a relative of the director, officer or key employee is an officer, director or employee, or in which he or she has a stock or other proprietary interest.

#### Article IV: Procedures

#### A. Duty to Disclose

In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an interested person or person with a conflicting interest, whether direct or indirect, must disclose the existence of the interest and all material facts to the directors or members of any committee considering the proposed transaction or arrangement.

#### B. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists

After disclosure of the conflicting interest and all material facts, and after any discussion between the interested person and the board of directors or committee, the interested person shall leave the board or committee meeting, if present, while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The remaining board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists.

#### C. Procedures for Addressing and Documenting Conflicts of Interest and Related Party Transactions

Once the Organization has determined that a conflict of interest exists, or, in the case of a related-party transaction, in which the related party has a substantial financial interest, the following procedures are to be followed:

- 1. An interested person may make a presentation at the board or committee meeting disclosing to the board or committee, in good faith, all material facts concerning his or her interest, and the board or committee may request the interested person to present further information as background or to answer questions concerning such conflict or transaction.
- 2. After the presentation, the interested person shall leave the meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.
- 3. Further, an interested person is prohibited from making any attempt to improperly influence the deliberation or voting on the matter giving rise to the conflict.

- 4. The chairperson of the board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.
- 5. After exercising due diligence, the board or committee shall determine whether the Organization can obtain, with reasonable effort, a more advantageous alternative transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest.
- 6. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors or committee members present at the meeting whether the transaction or arrangement is in the Organization's best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination, the board or committee shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement. The decision regarding the proposed transaction giving rise to a conflict of interest shall be contemporaneously documented in writing as set forth in Article
- D. Violations of the Conflict of Interest Policy
  - If the board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a director, officer or key employee or volunteer has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the interested person of the basis for such belief and afford the individual an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.
  - 2. If, after hearing the director, officer or key employee or volunteer's response, and after making further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the board or committee determines that the interested person has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

#### Article V: Records of Proceedings

The minutes of the board and all committees with board-delegated powers shall contain:

- 1. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have an interest in an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the board's or committee's decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed.
- 2. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any alternatives to the

proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection with the proceedings.

3. The resolution of the conflict and the content of the discussion relating to the resolution. Specifically, the record should include a description of the potential conflict and the basis for the resolution, including consideration of alternative transactions.

### Article VI: Compensation

#### A. Approval of Compensation

The dates and terms of all approved compensation arrangements shall be documented and be approved in advance of any payment.

#### B. Amount of Compensation

Compensation shall be determined with consideration given to information about compensation paid by similarly situated taxable or tax-exempt organizations that provide similar services, current compensation surveys compiled by independent firms, or actual written offers from similarly situated organizations. Information on which those setting compensation relied and its source shall also be recorded in writing.

#### C. Awarding of Compensation

A voting member of the board or any committee who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Organization for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to or affecting that member's compensation, or attending any meeting in which his or her compensation is discussed or considered. The interested person may provide background information or answer questions prior to any such deliberation or vote.

### Article VII: Annual Statement for Directors

Each director, officer, or key employee or volunteer shall, before initial election or appointment and annually thereafter, sign a statement in the form attached hereto, and give such statement to the Secretary or the designated compliance officer of the Organization, which affirms that such person:

- A. Has received a copy of this Policy;
- B. Has read and understands this Policy;
- C. Has agreed to comply with this Policy;

- D. Understands that the Organization is charitable and in order to maintain its federal tax exemption it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes, and will endeavor to further such purposes; and
- E. Understands that he or she must disclose any conflict of interest; specifically, the director or key employee must identify, to the best of his or her knowledge any entity of which he or she is an officer, director, trustee, member, owner or employee and with which the Organization has a relationship, and any transaction in which the Organization is a participant.

The Secretary or the designated compliance officer of the Organization shall provide a copy of all completed statements to the chairperson of the board of directors or the head of any other committee charged with the responsibility of enforcing the policy.

#### Article VIII: Periodic Reviews

To ensure the Organization operates in a manner consistent with its charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews shall be conducted by the board or a committee charged with conducting such a review. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects:

- A. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on competent survey information, and the result of arm's length bargaining.
- B. Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with individuals or entities conform to this Organization's written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable purposes, and do not result in private inurement, impermissible private benefit, or in an excess benefit transaction.

#### Article IX: Use of Outside Experts or Advisors

When conducting the periodic reviews as provided for in Article IX, the board or the committee charged with conducting the periodic review may, but need not, use outside experts or advisors. If outside persons are used, their use shall not relieve the board or the committee charged with conducting the periodic review of its responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews are conducted.

Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement of the American Go Association

### NAME:

### TITLE:

(1) I have read and understand the Conflict of Interest Policy of the American Go Association (the "Organization") and agree to comply with its terms and conditions.

(2) Except as noted in (3) below, I do not have any direct or indirect relationship with any third party which gives rise to a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest resulting from my service to the Organization.

(3) State "None" or identify any exception:

I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, all of the information on this Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement is true, correct, complete and made in good faith. If circumstances change from the above during the course of my service to the Organization, I will notify the board of directors promptly.

Signature

Date